## **BYLAWS OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION**

# <u> Article I - General</u>

### Section 1.1 – References

As used throughout these Bylaws, "Planning Commission" shall refer to the Jefferson County Planning Commission, and "County Commission" shall refer to the County Commission of Jefferson County, both of Jefferson County, West Virginia. The term "item" as used herein shall refer to any matter before the Planning Commission for consideration or discussion, and shall be construed broadly.

## Section 1.2 – Authority

These bylaws and its provisions are authorized by W.Va. Code § 8A-2-11, which empowers the Planning Commission, among other things, to "(2) Prescribe rules and regulations pertaining to administration, investigations and hearings[,]" provided that the same are adopted by the County Commission.

## Section 1.3 – Severability

The invalidation of any provision or section of these Bylaws shall not invalidate any other provision or section of these Bylaws.

## Section 1.4 – Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Planning Commission by a majority vote of the Planning Commission, and shall take effect upon adoption by the County Commission or at a date certain thereafter.

## Article II - Organization

### Section 2.1 – Membership

The Planning Commission, by ordinance previously adopted by the County Commission, shall be comprised of nine (9) members appointed by the County Commission pursuant to W.Va. Code § 8A-2-4.

### Section 2.2 – Term of office

Upon appointment to the Planning Commission, a member shall serve a term of three years pursuant to W.Va. Code § 8A-2-4(g).

### Section 2.3 – Powers and Duties

In addition to the powers and duties provided in these Bylaws, the Planning Commission shall have such other powers and duties as provided by law, including but not limited to W.Va. Code § 8A-2-11.

### Section 2.4 – Committees

The Planning Commission may establish one or more committees to which, pursuant to W.Va. Code § 8A-2-11 (15), it may delegate limited powers. Committees shall consist of no less than

three (3) members nor more than five (5) members of the Planning Commission. Appointments to committees shall be made by a majority vote of the Planning Commission.

# Article III - Officers

# Section 3.1- Elections

At its first regular meeting each January, the Planning Commission shall elect a President, Vice President, and Secretary.

## Section 3.2 – President

The President shall preside at all public hearings and meetings held by the Planning Commission. The President may call special meetings of the Planning Commission as necessary, and is empowered to certify by signature or otherwise any official and valid action of the Planning Commission. The President shall also perform such duties and functions as may from time to time be required by the Planning Commission.

# Section 3.3 – Vice President

During any absence of the President, the Vice President shall assume the duties and functions of President. The Vice President shall also perform such duties and functions as may from time to time be required by the Planning Commission.

## Section 3.4 – Secretary

The Secretary shall perform such duties and functions as may from time to time be required by the Planning Commission.

## Section 3.5 – Absence of President and Vice President

In the absence of both the President and Vice President, any present member may call to order a regular or special meeting of the Planning Commission, which shall thereupon immediately empower one or more of its present members to fulfill the duties and functions of President and/or Vice President during said absence.

## Section 3.6 – Replacing Officers

In the event of the death, resignation, or removal of an officer of the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission shall thereupon elect one of its members to complete the unexpired term. A three-fifths majority of the total membership of the Planning Commission may, at any regular meeting, remove the President and/or the Vice President from office, provided that a new election to fill the remaining term(s) of office is immediately held.

# Article IV - Meetings

# Section 4.1 – Regular Meetings

The Planning Commission shall hold regular meetings on the second Tuesdays of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the ground floor meeting room of the Old Charles Town Library, at 200 East Washington Street, Charles Town, West Virginia. Prior notice shall be provided in the event that any regular meeting is held at a different location. An additional regular meeting may be called by the President or by two or more members of the Planning Commission for a specific

agenda item on the fourth Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. at the location noted in this section. Such regular meeting shall be called at least seven (7) days prior to the fourth Tuesday to allow for posting of the agenda. A regular meeting may be postponed or cancelled for appropriate reasons, and in such case prior notice of said postponement or cancellation shall be provided if possible.

# Section 4.2 – Special Meetings

A special meeting may be called by the President or by two or more members of the Planning Commission to be held on a different day and/or a different time than regular meetings. Pursuant to W.Va. Code § 8A-2-7, notice for all special meetings shall be in writing, include the date, time and place of the special meeting as well as the purpose of the meeting, and be sent to all members at least two days before the special meeting. A special meeting may be postponed or cancelled for appropriate reasons, and in such case prior notice of said postponement or cancellation shall be provided if possible.

# Section 4.3 – Recording of Meetings

All meetings of the Planning Commission shall be recorded, and such recordings shall be maintained and made available, upon request and in accordance with the procedures of the Planning Commission and/or its staff, to the public.

## Section 4.4 – Agendas

An agenda shall be made available at least seven (7) days prior to the start of all regular and special meetings. Items shall be listed on the agenda in such a manner as to sufficiently identify the substance of the item and allow for a vote on the item by the Planning Commission if necessary. The Planning Commission may deviate from an agenda's order if necessary.

## Section 4.5 – Quorum

In order to conduct a regular or special meeting, a quorum of the members must be present. A majority of the members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum. No action of the Planning Commission shall be official or valid unless authorized by a majority of members present at a regular or special meeting.

An individual confined to home due to serious illness or injury may attend the Planning Commission meeting via telephone or other electronic media with prior approval of the President and will count towards a quorum.

## Section 4.6 – Procedures for Conducting Meetings

In the absence of state law or of other procedures of the Planning Commission, Roberts Rules of Order, current edition, shall be the parliamentary authority of Planning Commission meetings.

## Section 4.7 – Open Governmental Proceedings

All meetings and actions of the Planning Commission shall comply with the requirements of West Virginia's open meetings laws, codified at W.Va. Code § 6-9A-1, et seq.

## Section 4.8 – Training

All newly appointed Planning Commission members shall attend a two hour training session within 90 days of their appointment to the Planning Commission. Such training may be provided by the County staff, by an APA approved or recommended organization and/or through a webinar provided by APA or another authorized organization. The focus of this initial training will be to provide an orientation to the roles, responsibilities and duties of a Planning Commission member.

Annually, all PC members shall attend a two hour training session provided by County staff, by an APA approved or recommended organization and/or through a webinar provided by APA or another authorized organization. Staff shall make the Commissions members aware of local training opportunities and/or shall provide access to webinars to provide the Planning Commission members with a variety of training opportunities.

Planning Commission members shall be encouraged to attend local, regional, and/or national on-site or webinar planning training sessions. As the Planning and Zoning budget allows, assistance may be provided for registration for such training.

## Section 4.9 - Attendance at Regular Meetings

Regular attendance of all Planning Commission members is critical to the effective functioning of the Planning Commission. Planning Commissioners shall strive to attend all Regular Meetings. Accordingly, if a Commissioner, over a consecutive six month period, misses six Regular Meetings with notice, or four Regular Meetings without notice, the Planning Commission may forward this information to the County Commission with the request that the County Commission consider removal from the Planning Commission due to a lack of interest.

## Article V – Consideration of Items

### Section 5.1 – Voting

A member must be or have been physically present at a meeting to vote on any item considered at said meeting. However, an individual confined to home due to serious illness or injury may attend the Planning Commission meeting via telephone with prior approval of the President. The individual will count towards a quorum and will have full voting privileges. Voting via proxy is not permitted. Abstention shall not be permitted by a member who is otherwise entitled to vote on an item.

### Section 5.2 – Recusal

A member may recuse himself/herself in relation to an item for the reasons set forth herein, in which case such member shall not participate in discussion, consideration or vote on said item. Valid reasons for recusal include (1) having a personal interest in an item, (2) having a contractual, employment, or other relationship with a party involved with an item, (3) being unable to impartially consider an item, or (4) having been absent from part or all of the discussion or consideration of an item. A member recusing himself or herself shall thereupon state the reason for such recusal and leave the meeting, remaining absent for the duration of consideration and/or discussion of the item.

## Section 5.3 – Ex Parte Communications

For purposes of these Bylaws, ex parte communications consist of communications regarding the substance of an item that is or will be before the Planning Commission for consideration and/or discussion, when such communications are between one or more members of the Planning Commission and one or more individuals involved with the item. No member of the Planning Commission shall voluntarily and knowingly engage in ex parte communications without the authority of the Planning Commission. In the event that a member of the Planning Commission has engaged in or receives any ex parte communication, said member shall bring the same to the attention of the Planning Commission. Communications with third parties regarding procedural aspects of items do not constitute ex parte communications in the context of these Bylaws.

## Section 5.4 – Ex-Officio Member Voting

A member who is also a member of the County Commission is a full voting member of the Planning Commission. However, any such ex-officio member may elect not to vote as a member of the Planning Commission on items which will subsequently require action or consideration by the County Commission.

An ex-officio member may remain at the meeting and participate in discussion on an item on which they elected not to vote under this section.